

LINGUISTIC FOODSCAPE AS CONVEYED THROUGH ONLINE FOOD MENUS

LIM CHIA WEI

FBMK 2019 44



LINGUISTIC FOODSCAPE AS CONVEYED THROUGH ONLINE FOOD MENUS



Thesis Submitted to the School of Graduate Studies, Universiti Putra Malaysia, in Fulfilment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Arts

COPYRIGHT

All material contained within the thesis, including without limitation text, logos, icons, photographs, and all other artwork, is copyright material of Universiti Putra Malaysia unless otherwise stated. Use may be made of any material contained within the thesis for non-commercial purposes from the copyright holder. Commercial use of material may only be made with the express, prior, written permission of Universiti Putra Malaysia.

Copyright © Universiti Putra Malaysia



Abstract of the thesis presented to the Senate of Universiti Putra Malaysia in fulfillment of the requirement for the degree of Master of Arts

LINGUISTIC FOODSCAPE AS CONVEYED THROUGH ONLINE FOOD MENUS

By

LIM CHIA WEI

November 2017

Chairman : Professor Ain Nadzimah Abdullah, PhD Faculty : Modern Languages and Communication

This research focuses on the current concern of language use in a particular environment which is encapsulated broadly as linguistic landscape. The study provides insights into language use in a narrowed context which will articulate social realities in relation to linguistic "foodscape" with a Malaysian flavour. It examines explores textual and nontextual linguistics in the form of online food menus. For this study, an internet search was conducted to identify online food menus identified by referred to all eatery shops in the largest shopping mall in Klang Valley. The search yielded online menus only from 37 shops. The menus were then studied in detail both for their linguistic expressions related to cuisinary language and their accompanying non-linguistic expressions. Next, the study explore how different cultures affect the Malaysian linguistic foodscape. The final part of the study discusses linguistics features pertaining to foods that contribute to the linguistic foodscape. The findings show that English is the most widespread language used in the Malaysian foodscape as found in the online food menus. The findings also showcase the interrelations between the patterns of language and script use, and non-linguistic expressions which together convey a distinct Malaysian cultural identity related to food menus. This study adds information to a vibrant area of social language use which has deep implications for practices in human food consumption. They could also reflect sustainability in food economies and market trends which are important aspects in economic and national development. In sum, the study touches on social and cultural capital contextualized within sets of personal values which make language use unique and dynamic.

Abstrak tesis ini dikemukakan kepada Senat Universiti Putra Malaysia sebagai memenuhi keperluan untuk ijazah Master Sastera

LANDSKAP LINGUISTIK MAKANAN TERHADAP MAKANAN MENU ATAS TALIAN

Oleh

LIM CHIA WEI

November 2017

Pengerusi : Profesor Ain Nadzimah Abdullah, PhD

Fakulti : Bahasa Moden dan Komunikasi

Kajian ini memberi tumpuan kepada landskap linguistik iaitu penggunaan bahasa dalam persekitaran yang terdedah dalam ruang awam. Kajian ini memberikan pemahaman tentang penggunaan bahasa dalam konteks, iaitu menggambarkan linguistik "foodscape" yang berkaitan dengan reality sosial dan gaya masakan di Malaysia. Kajian ini menerokai ciri-ciri linguistik teks dan bukan linguistik teks yang dipaparkan dalam menu makanan atas talian. Menu makanan atas talian yang terdapat di sebuah gedung membeli-belah terbesar di Lembah Klang dikenal pasti melalui pencarian internet, dan 37 menu makanan atas talian dipilih untuk kajian ini. Menu makanan berkenaan dikaji untuk mengetahui ciri-ciri bahasa dan bukan bahasa yang berkaitan dengan makanan. Seterusnya, pengaruh perbezaan budaya terhadap linguistik foodscape di kalangan rakyat Malaysia dikaji. Bahagian akhir kajian membincangkan ungkapan linguistik yang berkaitan dengan gaya makanan yang membentuk linguistic foodscape. Kajian ini menunjukkan bahawa Bahasa Inggeris adalah bahasa yang paling kerap digunakan dalam linguistik foodscape Malaysia. Hasil kajian juga mempamerkan hubungan antara penggunaan bahasa dan skrip untuk menyampaikan identiti budaya Malaysia unik melalui makanan menu. Kajian ini menujuk bahawa bahasa mempunyai implikasi yang mendalam terhadap amalan penggunaan makanan. Kajian ini juga mencerminkan kemampanan dalam ekonomi makanan dan trend pasaran merupa aspek-aspek yang penting dalam ekonomi dan pembangunan negara. Kesimpulannya, kajian ini merangkumi kontekstualisasi sosial dan kebudayaan dalam nilai peribadi yang menjadikan bahasa unik dan dinamik.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This thesis could not have been written without the guidance and encouragement of my supervisors, Prof. Dr Chan Swee Heng, and Prof. Dr Ain Nadzimah Abdullah. They are the ones who enthusiastic support for the thesis topic from the very beginning. I am deeply grateful for their incisive comments, questions, and feedback on my writing throughout the completion of this thesis.

Warm love goes to my parents and siblings for their loving support, and continuous believing in me throughout the completion of this thesis. My heartfelt gratitude for they have always motivated me.

Over the past years, I have been lucky to have peers that share their insights and fight with study and work together. The warm friendship and peer-support was the only way we could live with the thesis without crumbling to pieces. Thank you.

I also extend my deepest appreciation to my friends whom believing in my abilities. Their sustained interest in and enthusiasm for my research encouraged me to get it done.

I certify that a Thesis Examination Committee has met on 3 November 2017 to conduct the final examination of Lim Chia Wei on her thesis entitled "Linguistic Foodscape as Conveyed Through Online Food Menus" in accordance with the Universities and University Colleges Act 1971 and the Constitution of the Universiti Putra Malaysia [P.U.(A) 106] 15 March 1998. The Committee recommends that the student be awarded the Master of Arts.

Members of the Thesis Examination Committee were as follows:

Hardev Kaur, PhD

Senior Lecturer
Faculty of Modern Languages and Communication
Universiti Putra Malaysia
(Chairman)

Zalina binti Mohd Kasim, PhD

Senior Lecturer
Faculty of Modern Languages and Communication
Universiti Putra Malaysia
(Internal Examiner)

Abdul Ghani bin Abu, PhD

Associate Professor Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris Malaysia (External Examiner)

RUSLI HAJI ABDULLAH, PhD

Professor and Deputy Dean School of Graduate Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia

Date: 30 July 2018

This thesis was submitted to the Senate of Universiti Putra Malaysia and has been accepted as fulfilment of the requirement for the Master of Arts. The members of the Supervisory Committee were as follows:

Ain Nadzimah Abdullah, PhD

Professor Faculty of Modern Languages and Communication Universiti Putra Malaysia (Chairman)

Chan Swee Heng, PhD

Professor
Faculty of Modern Languages and Communication
Universiti Putra Malaysia
(Member)

ROBIAH BINTI YUNUS, PhD

Professor and Dean School of Graduate Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia

Date: 1 6 AUG 2018

Declaration by graduate student

I hereby confirm that:

- this thesis is my original work;
- quotations, illustrations and citations have been duly referenced;
- this thesis has not been submitted previously or concurrently for any other degree at any institutions;
- intellectual property from the thesis and copyright of thesis are fully-owned by Universiti Putra Malaysia, as according to the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Research) Rules 2012;
- written permission must be obtained from supervisor and the office of Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research and innovation) before thesis is published (in the form of written, printed or in electronic form) including books, journals, modules, proceedings, popular writings, seminar papers, manuscripts, posters, reports, lecture notes, learning modules or any other materials as stated in the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Research) Rules 2012;
- there is no plagiarism or data falsification/fabrication in the thesis, and scholarly integrity is upheld as according to the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Graduate Studies) Rules 2003 (Revision 2012-2013) and the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Research) Rules 2012. The thesis has undergone plagiarism detection software

Signature:	Date:	
Name and Matric No.: Lim Chia Wei, GS21356		

Declaration by Members of Supervisory Committee

This is to confirm that:

- the research conducted and the writing of this thesis was under our supervision;
- supervision responsibilities as stated in the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Graduate Studies) Rules 2003 (Revision 2012-2013) were adhered to.

Signature:	
Name of Chairman	
of Supervisory	
Committee:	Professor Dr. Ain Nadzimah Abdullah
) M
Signature:	The state of the s
Name of Member	
of Supervisory	
Committee:	Professor Dr. Chan Swee Heng

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page
ABSTA ACKN APPR DECL LIST	NOWL OVAL ARAT	EDGEMENTS TION GURES	i ii iii iv vi x xi
СНАР	PTER		
1	INTR	RODUCTION	1
	1.1	Introduction	1
	1.2	Scope of the Study	1
	1.3	Background of the Study	1
	1.4	Statement of the Problem	5
	1.5	Objectives of the Study	6
	1.6	Research Questions	6
	1.7	Significance of the Study	7
	1.8	Limitations	7
	1.9	Definition of Terms	8
		1.9.1 Linguistic Foodscape	8
		1.9.2 Food Menus	8
		1.9.3 Origin of Restaurant	8
		1.9.4 Origin of Food	8
		1.9.5 Food Cultural Capital	8
		1.9.6 Linguistics Features	8
		1.9.7 Non-linguistics Features	9
2	LITE	CRATURE REVIEW	10
	2.1	Introduction	10
	2.2	Language and Thought	10
	2.3	Discourse and Pragmatics	11
	2.4	Linguistic Landscape	12
		2.4.1 Shop Signages and Linguistic Landscape	13
	2.5	The Language of Food	14
		2.5.1 Gastronomy and Culinary	14
		2.5.2 Food Culture	15
		2.5.3 Food Patterns	16
		2.5.4 Food Identity	17
	2.6	Food Discourse	18
		2.6.1 Food Menus and its Composing	19
		2.6.2 Linguistic Features	21
		2.6.3 Non Linguistic Features	21
	2.7	Conceptual Framework	22
	2.8	Summary	24

3	RESI	EACH METHODOLOGY	26
	3.1	Research Design	26
	3.2	The Research Site	26
	3.3	Data Collection Procedures	26
	3.4	Methods of Analysis	27
4	FIND	DINGS AND DISCUSSION	29
	4.1	Introduction	29
	4.2	Features of Menus in the Malaysian Foodscape	29
		4.2.1 Types of Restaurant	29
		4.2.2 Origin of the Restaurants and Cafés	30
		4.2.3 Physical Layout	32
		4.2.3.1 Abbreviations or Symbols	32
		4.2.3.2 The Play of Words	36
	4.3	Culture, Online Food Menu and Identity	38
		4.3.1 Western Food Culture and Western Food	38
		4.3.1.1 United Kingdom	38
		4.3.1.2 France and Italy	41
		4.3.1.3 Mexico and Spain	42
		4.3.1.4 Germany and Portugal	43
		4.3.1.5 The United States of America (USA)	44
		4.3.2 Local (Malaysian/Singapore) Food Culture and Food	45
		4.3.3 Asia Food Culture and Food	47
		4.3.4 Fusion Food	49
	4.4	Establishing Food Identity through Linguistic Features	50
		4.4.1 Vocabulary Peculiarities in Relation to Serving of	
		Meat and Seafood	50
		4.4.2 Vocabulary Peculiarities in Relation to Dairy Product	52
		4.4.3 Vocabulary Peculiarities in Relation to Pasta/Noodles	53
		4.4.4 Vocabulary Peculiarities in Relation to Methods of	
		Preparation	55
	4.5	Chapter Summary	57
5	SUM	MARY, CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	
	FOR	FUTURE RESEARCH	58
	5.1	Introduction	58
	5.2	Summary of Findings	58
	5.3	Implication of Study	59
	5.4	Recommendations	59
	5.5	Conclusion	60
REF	ERENC	CES	61
APP	ENDIC	ES	70
BIOI	DATA (OF STUDENT	143

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure		Page	
2.1	The Stereotypical Restaurant and Computer Scripts	22	
2.2	Conceptual Framework of Linguistic Foodscape of Online Food Menu	24	



LIST OF IMAGES

Image		Page
4.1	Symbols of TM and ® on chilis Menu and McDonalds's	33
4.2	Symbols of Asterisk * and Bold Wording on Chilis Menu	33
4.3	Symbols to Demote Particular Meat and Vegetarian on Restaurant Menus	34
4.4	Symbols of Alerts in Nando's Menu	35
4.5	Nutrition Facts by McDonalds's on the Serving of Big Mac™	35
4.6	Symbols of Recommendation in Menus	36
4.7	Traditional Irish Dishes in the Finnegan Irish Menu	38
4.8	Dishes Contained Cheese Showed in the Finnegan Irish Menu	39
4.9	Croque Monsieur and Croque Madame in Delicious Menu	42
4.10	Espertada Rustica in Nando's Menu	44
4.11	Parts of the meat in Pao Xiang Bah Kut The menu	46
4.12	Taiwanese Signature Dishes in Taiwan Recipe Signature Menu	47
4.13	Japanese Rice Dishes Category	48
4.14	Big breakfast of Delicious and Antipodean	52
4.15	Eggs Benedict and Eggs Royale in Delicious Menu	53
4.16	Pasta and sauce from the Delicious and Sweet Chat Menus	54
4.17	Choices of Pasta from the Delicious Menu	54

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Introduction

Today' global economy expands knowledge of food from differing geopgraphic, cultural and histrorical influences. It can be seen that global brandscapes in food traverse virtual space and persuade customers multi-culturally. Digital technology, including emerging trends in online menus, online ordering and delivery services, is changing the way consumers discover, interact with and experience restaurants. One of the interesting discoveries is how knowledge of food culture and the language of food use in a particular work environment, in this case online menus which is encapsulated as linguistic landscape.

This section provides an introductory overview to the research. It contains the scope of the study, background of the study, statement of the problem, objectives, research questions, significance of the study, limitations of the study, and definition of key terms used in this research.

1.2 Scope of the Study

This study focuses on language of food through the on-line written medium in order to pursue a greater understanding and appreciation for language of foodscape. It explores various food culture in the form of food menus. It reveals the features of language use that represent food identity in menus, and language use in specialized knowledge such as those found in the use of terminology which may involve the use of a foreign language, ingredients, and specialized cooking technical knowledge..

1.3 Background of the Study

Human beings have been using signs (i.e. images, symbols, gestures or words) to create messages and convey meaning since the beginning of human history; on stone surfaces, papyrus leaves, papers or the Internet. Thus, a variety of scripts and texts exists to present the linguistic landscape of a place at any one point of time. In addition, language is central to culture because it is the means through which culture is learned and communicated (Ayeomoni, 2011).

Linguistic landscape as a field of study has become a relatively new area of sociolinguistic research which concerns language use in a particular environment. In addition, it also studies the relationship between language and society. The languages of signs on public display have been fascinatingly studied by a number of scholars for

the past forty years (Tulp, 1978; Spolsky and Cooper, 1991; Landry and Bourhis, 1997; Cenoz and Gorter, 2006).

The term 'linguistic landscape' was first used by Landry and Bourhis (1997). In their paper, they reported on the perceptions of francophone high school students on the language of public signs in Canadian provinces. Landry and Bourhis (1997:25):

The language of public road signs, advertising billboards, street names, place names, commercial signs, and public signs on government buildings combines to form the linguistic landscape of a given territory, region or urban agglomeration.

The study of linguistic landscape has taken different approaches and has focused on different areas of interest, such as multilingualism, spread of English, language policy and public signs. Coulmas (2009) studied linguistic landscaping in the public sphere and highlighted that linguistic landscape is a cultural scene and "landmarks of the city are to be read, which was and is a defining feature of a city life: (p.23). Cenoz and Gorter (2006) used the economy approach to study the market and non-market values of linguistic diversity within linguistic landscape. On the other hand, Bagni and Barna (2010) studied the relationship between linguistic landscape and language presence and vitality in cities of Italy where immigrant communities have settled.

Shopping areas in the city have a high potential for investigating linguistic landscape, and many researches have been carried out in this environment. Since the publication of Landry and Bourhis' paper in 1997, research into linguistic landscape has been growing. A number of researchers have started to look at language text in public space. Landry and Bourhis' paper is commonly quoted by researchers such as Gorter, 2006; Ben-Rafael *et al*, 2006; Huebner, 2006; Backhaus, 2006, 2007; Cenoz and Gorter, 2006; Leeman and Modan, 2009; Pennycook, 2009; Curtin, 2009.

Ben Rafael et al. (2006) studied how Israel-Hebrew, Arabic and English, are used on private and public signs in Israel. Backhaus (2006) studied multilingualism in Tokyo by giving the distinction between official and non-official multilingual signs, and interpreting the differences using the notion of power and solidarity. Additionally, Hueber (2006) examined the linguistic landscapes of Bangkok neighborhoods to explore questions of language contact, language mixing and language dominance.

The city is obviously a place of language contact, attracting people of various origins with differing linguistic backgrounds as they seek to make a living. The city is 'a place of talk' that Halliday (1978:154) mentioned in which a lot of discourses take place, including writing and reading aside from oral discourses. Many researchers started to focus on the urban language contact in the written medium, and the language of the signs on public display. The display of written messages in a variety of languages and scripts dominate much of the linguistic landscape of a place.

These days the high density of signs found in cities can be seen as an indicator of economic development and vibrance. As such, linguistic landscape in the urban setting has also been referred to as "linguistic cityscape" (Gorter, 2006:2). Commercial developments have definitely contributed to the diversity of language use.

Another impact on linguistic landscape is globalization and the narrowing of borders between countries. Foreign goods and services are now very much a part of urban life, making it crucial for consumers and producers to communicate and be understood in the context of the business enterprise. Also, much of the communication can easily take place in the enterprises and is conveyed through texts and images via digital signals.

Textual discourse which is associated with the ways of using language; to think, to feel, to believe, to value, and to be acted upon, can reveal identity, as one or as a member of a socially meaningful group or 'social network' (Gee 1990: 143). Carter and Long (1991) postulated that stylistics would characterize how language is used in text and how meaning is then constructed by text decoders. What we mean and how we mean it are important as they are the basic features of language for communication and understanding.

Over the past decades, we have witnessed a rise in food-focused media and culture (Stajcic, 2013), and there is an increased status and significance of food within contemporary society and culture (ibid, 5). Gastronomic tradition is dependent upon culture, and it is an unavoidable and promising tool for learning about cultural differences, from the ingredients, preparation, cooking technique, plating to the name of the dish, or even text on the menu. In addition, authenticity is the utmost important element in defining cultural heritage values. Authenticity is referred to originality and uniqueness, which could give a character and image to a constituent (Chhabra, 2005) and has its own historic value which reflects a region's culture. Through menus, the authenticity of food culture is portrayed through language use that is associated with the methods of food preparation, food ingredients and eating manners.

In this study, the focus is on food menu as a representation of text which deals specifically with persuasive language in the public domain as in the cityscape. Its writing has its own paralanguage and contributes to the creation of image-making and meaning. Food menus also help in exploring relationship between addressers, message and addressees. Grimes (1998) discussed the changes in menu style and content and the way a reader is supposed to respond to the menu. Besides the major aspects of identity (i.e. gender, ethnicity), other categories such as the expression of taste in the consumption of food and food linguistic expression, are part of the minor identity that is displayed linguistically and socially (Lakoff, 2006:143). Food and its menu are significant aspects of culture with food playing a dominant role in our lives, thus giving us a food-related identity and a configuration of food attitudes.

The Sapir-Wharf Hypothesis is relevant in explaining the relationship between language, thought and culture. It states that thought is cast from language: our language shapes our view of reality, identity and attitude. This view of linguistic relativity is manifest in the overt linguistic landscape accessible to the public. One feature of this linguistic landscape is the food landscape. This landscape is further evidenced through a number of language and non-language devices. Linguistics landscape periscopes the interplay among language, food and culture in society. The focus of this study is the food landscape which is further narrowed to the study of online food menus that are illustrative of the food and beverage outlets and their food menus.

People enjoy eating. They find interesting differences in food choices and preferences, located in differing geographic, cultural and historical influences. Through eating, people expand their culinary knowledge and discover gastronomic experience. This is the food culture that shapes that group's relationship to food. According to Gifford and Sinnott (2007), "at the Asian tables, we smell, taste and savor crispy-skinned Peking duck, exquisitely seasoned lobster in Hong Kong, the gorgeous sushi and sashimi of Japan." As a result, "global economy is continuing to expand knowledge of food from other cultures as new foods from afar appear in our markets and on menus" (Mcwilliams, 2011:5). It is clear that today's foodscape has an international flavor and, therefore, exerts a major linguistic influence on language growth and development in this aspect. With this in mind, the present study has chosen to examine this language phenomenon in relation to that found in menu writing and the accompanying features that bring to life the 'colors' of food expression.

The persuasive and informative writing on the menu would help to invite consumers to savour the food advertized. Food advertisements can appear in different forms and medium. The image of food and ingredients is rooted in the cultural connection between technology, mythology and nature.

Malaysia is a well known food haven for local and foreign tourists. The various races and culture have contributed to the Malaysian foodscape. When we are eating food, either dining in or out, we are experiencing a system or grammar of food (Stajcic, 2013). We can study the significance of food on language and culture; "how you talk, along with other kinds of social codes such as how you dress or how you behave, is an important way of displaying who you are, in other words of indicating your social identity" (Thomas and Wareing, 1999: 136), and the language of food plays a role in linguistic and social identity.

For this purpose, the research site for the study is the online menus of restaurants found in shopping malls in the Klang Valley. The choice is determined by a setting reflective of the linguistic realizations of food menus. In line with Halliday and Hasan's (1976) theory of language and social reality, the study investigates writing elements of food menus leading to an understanding of the discourse and identity of the food and beverage outlets.

1.4 Statement of the Problem

Linguistic landscapes are always present in local, global, or multicultural settings. Research in linguistic landscape in the Asian region, were undertaken only by Backhaus (2003) who focused on multilingual signs in Tokyo, and Huebner (2006) who covered language mixing and language contact in Bangkok. In the case of Malaysia as a multilingual country, the spread and influence of other languages is visible, especially in the use of English.. Thus, language in the public space is a major indication of language attitude (Landy and Bourhis, 1997: 2). This attitude is illustrative of social reality which includes the presence of a large number of food menus in the restaurants or websites of restaurants found in many Malaysian shopping malls.

As mentioned in the earlier section, an extended development in the linguistic cityscape is foodscape. With social realities being captured in different dimensions, this urban development is another angle which can provide language data that informs on local sociolinguistic practices of a community. The multicultural and multilingual setting of urban Malaysian society provides unique language details that are worthy of study to provide evidence of pragmatic language use in an aspect of cultural practice, which is language use in the context of food advertisement thus giving us an understanding of a life style conveyed through food concerns.

In connection with lifestyle practices in a democratic society, there is the dominance of choice. Together with consumer choice is the need for artful persuasion in the use of business language. In the context of the study, this persuasion is seen in advertising language which aims to sell a product, which in this case is food. The advertisement is specifically studied in relation to menu display which necessarily has to use language in a particular form to persuade, and at the same time give information on the uniqueness of the product.

"Culture and ethnicity are essential foundations of the study of food and people" (Tamang, 2010). 'Culinary culture' assembles attitude and tastes people bring to cooking and eating (Mennell, Murcott, Otterloo, 1992). Studies on food culture and food heritage highlight the characteristics of traditional foods or dishes, or ingredients of everyday consumption and to appreciate the important cultural and historical value they possess.

According to Halligan (1988), 'food for thought' is not only referring to real food, but it also has a metaphorical interpretation, as well as having a symbolic and cultural context. Food with specific lexis contains more jargonistic vocabulary requiring knowledge in order to be understood, which also refers to the feature of foreign lexis in the description. However, the use of simple language could make the food dishes accessible to a range of consumers, as it avoids alienating them with language they may not understand. The contexts are important, such as words for food, genres surrounding its preparation, and pragmatic routines.

The genre of cookery illustrations is a kind of metalanguage that creates a kind of myth as to what food should look like (Roland Barthes, 1972). This brief description of characteristic features and culinary terms emphasizes the cultural aspect of food and also builds an exotic aura about food. In addition, what we know and what we think we know is culturally contextual. For example, some of us may have been brought up or have acquired the taste of ketchup with french fries, tartar sauce on shrimp and fish, and herb dressings on salad (Lévi-Strauss, 1970).

By studying the online food menus, particular identities of the participating food and beverage outlets would contribute to the illumination of language use in a particular sector of the linguistic landscape in Malaysia. Food menus reflect how language is used in society for the purpose of communcation.

Hard copies of menus would not be provided by all the shops. Hence, an alternative workable procedure was adopted and this was to source for materials from the open access domain in the form of the Internet where online menus related to the shops found in the research site are displayed for public consumption and therefore were easily accessible for data capture.

1.5 Objectives of the Study

This study aims to study the linguistic features of on-line restaurant food menus, and how cultures across the region affect the Malaysian foodscape. Besides that, this study looks at how the linguistic features establish food identity.

1.6 Research Questions

Specifically, the study seeks to answer the research questions below:

- 1. What are the features of menus in the Malaysian foodscape in terms of:
 - a. types of restaurant
 - b. origin of restaurant
 - c. physical layout/images/language
- 2. How does culture reflect on the online food menu?
 - a. Western food
 - b. Asian food
 - c. Malaysian/Singaporean food
 - d. Fusion food

- 3. What are the linguistic features associated with food identity?
 - a. vocabulary peculiarities in relation to serving of meat and seafood
 - b. vocabulary peculiarities in relation to daily products
 - c. vocabulary prculiarities in relation to pasta/ noodles
 - d. vocabulary peculiarities in relation to method of preparation

1.7 Significance of the Study

In the last ten years, research in the area of linguistic landscape has been growing (Gorter and Cenoz, 2008:345). In addition, the study of the linguistic landscape is a new dimension in the field of multilingualism (Landry and Bourhis, 1997; Gorter, 2006; Huebner, 2006; Backhaus, 2006). In Malaysia, studying the linguistic landscape is a relatively new area. Malaysia is one of the countries in South East Asia with vast gastronomic products, and is therefore a hotbed for research on foodscape.

Society and context are important in a discourse analysis, which presents an opportunity to observe social changes in a society. The shopping mall is a fascinating place for language studies as there is a variety of language use for commercial purposes. Therefore, this study will provide insights into the pragmatics of language use in a particular context which will articulate social realities in relation to the linguistic "foodscape" with a Malaysian flavor.

In addition, restaurant food menus contribute to an essential area of language use. A study of this nature also provides a link between discourse analysis, linguistics and communication. Specifically, the study reveals the relationship between linguistic situations that include patterns of language and script use, and identity.

1.8 Limitations

This study is a case for the exploration of the linguistic landscape on the online food menus. However, the data does not provide a total representation of the whole linguistic landscape in relation to restaurant food menus. The sample is restricted to only online food menus from one shopping mall. The shopping mall sets a "virtual geographic" guidelines for online menu data collection in an urban setting as it consists the most eatery shops in Klang Valley.

Research papers need not take a traditionally linguistic approach (i.e. to analyze morphology, semantics and syntax), but to explore the linguistic landscape of food in the public sphere, as mutually presented to the the customers. Also, this study does not look at advertising discourse, even though Kress and van Leeuwen (1996) claim that images have their own grammar and rules whereby language and visual communication both carry systems of meaning that constitute our culture in its own specific forms. This study does not examine how persuasive messages of visual images and texts are presented in advertising the menus.

The menu sample is restricted to only online food menus from one shopping mall. The shopping mall sets a "virtual geographic" guidelines for online menu data collection in an urban setting as it consists the most eatery shops in Klang Valley.

1.9 Definition of Terms

1.9.1 Linguistic Foodscape

The term linguistic landscape refers to "language texts that are present in public space" (Gorter, 2006) and displayed in the multilingual cityscape. In this study, the linguistic landscape is narrowed to linguistic foodscape that refers to written texts in the form of restaurant food menus found on the website of food outlets.

1.9.2 Food Menus

Food menus in this study refer to web-published food menus from the respective food outlets.

1.9.3 Origin of Restaurant

Origin of restaurant refers to the location where it set up in a particular country.

1.9.4 Origin of Food

The analysis of food menus is based on the restaurant concept or the origin of the dishes.

1.9.5 Food Cultural Capital

Cultural knowledge, attitudes, preferences and behaviours and custom customs a diner possess when it comes to food choice.

1.9.6 Linguistics Features

Language and vocabularies used for naming food dishes and writing description of the dishes.

1.9.7 Non-linguistics Features

Images, symbols, charts will be studies as the non-linguistics features in the online food menus



REFERENCES

- Auter, P.J & Moore, R.L. (1993). Buying from a Friend: A content analysis of two Teleshopping programmes. *Journalism Quarterly*, 70(2): 425-436.
- Autun, J. M. & Gustafson, C. (2005). Menu Success: A Menu Analysis of Awarded Fine Dining Restaurants and Private Clubs. *Journal of Culinary Science and Technology*, 51-66.
- Ayeomoni, M.O. (2011). Language, Food and Culture: Implications for Language Development and Expansion in Nigeria. *International Journal of Educational Research and Technology*, Volume 2, Issue 2, 50 55.
- Backhaus, P. (2007). Linguistic Landscapes: A Comparative Study of Urban Multilingualism in Tokyo. Clevedon: Multilingual Matters Ltd.
- Backhaus, P. (2006). Multilingualism in Tokyo: A Look into the Linguistic Landscape. In D. Gorter, *Linguistic Landscape: A New Approach to Multilingualism* (pp. 52-66). Clevedon: Multilingual Matters Ltd.
- Barber, B. (2001). Jihad vs McWorld. New York: Random House.
- Barthes, R. (1972). *Mythologies*. London: Paladin/Granada.
- Ben-Rafael, E., Shohamy, E., Amara, M. H., & Trumper-Hecht, N. (2006). Linguistic Landscape as Symbolic Construction of the Public Space: The Case of Israel. *International Journal of Multilingualism*, 7-30.
- Blommaert, J. (2005). Discourse. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- Bora Bia Irish Food Board. Retrieved from http://www.bordbia.ie/Pages/Default.aspx
- Bourhis, R. Y., & Landry, R. (1977). Linguistic landscape and Ethnolinguistic Vitality: An Empirical Study. *Journal of Language and Social Psychology*, 23-49.
- Bourdieu, P. (1984). *Distinction: A Social Critique of the Judgement of Taste*. (N. Richard, Trans.) London: Routledge.
- Bourdieu, P. (2010). Distinction: a social critique of the judgement of taste Nice R, translator. Oxford: Taylor & Francis Ltd.
- Brillat-Savarin, J. A. (1994). *Introduction, The Physiology of Taste*. (A. Drayton, Trans.) London: Penguin Classics (First published as La Phsiologie du groût, 1825).
- Cardello, A. V., & Sawyer, F. (1992). Effects of Disconfirmed Consumer Expectations on Food Acceptability. *Journal of Sensory Studies*, 253-277.

- Cappelli , G (2008). Travelling words: Languaging in English tourism discourse. Retrived from http://www.gloriacappelli.it/wp-content/uploads/2006/09/Travelling-words.pdf
- Carroll, J.B. (ed.) (1956). Language, Thought, and Reality: Selected writings of Benjamin Lee Whorf. Cambridge, Mass.: MIT Press.
- Carter, R., & Long, M. M. (1991). Teaching literature. New York: Longman.
- Cenoz, J., & Gorter, D. (2006). Linguistic Landscape and Minority Languages. In D. Gorter, *Linguistic Landscape: A New Approach to Multilingualism* (pp. 67-80). Clevedon: Multilingual Matters Ltd.
- Chhabra, D. (2005). Defining authenticity and its determinants: Toward an authenticity flow model. *Journal of Travel Research*. vol. 44(1).
- Chiaro, D. (2008). A Taste of Otherness Eating and Thinking Globally. *European Journal of English Studies*, 195-209.
- Choiseul, J. W., G. Doherty, et al. (2008). Potato Varieties of Historical Interest in Ireland, DAFF.
- Christensen, C. M. (1983). Effects of Color on Aroma, Flavor and Texture Judgments of Foods. *Journal of Food Science*, 787–790.
- Christie, F. (1985). Language and Schooling. In S. Tchudi (Ed.), Language, Schooling and Society (pp. 21-40). New Jersey: Boynton/Cook.
- Cole F.L. (1988) Content analysis: process and application. *Clinical Nurse Specialist* 2(1), 53–57.
- Couldry, N. (2008) 'Mediatization or Mediation? Alternative Understandings of the Emergent Space of Digital Storytelling', New Media and Society 10(3): 373–391.
- Coulmas, F. (2009). Linguistic landscaping and the seed of the public sphere. In E. Shohamy & D. Gorter (Eds.), *Linguistic landscape: Expanding the scenery* (pp. 13–24). New York, NY: Routledge.
- Curtin, M. L. (2009). Languages on Display: Indexical Signs, Identities and the Linguistic Landscape of Taipei. In G. Durk, & E. Shohamy (Eds.), *Linguistic Landscape: Expanding the Scenery* (pp. 221-237). New York: Routledge.
- Diemer, S., Brunner M-L, Schmidt, S.. (2014). "Like, Pasta, Pizza and Stuff" New Trends in Online Food Discourse. *The Journal of Canadian Food Cultures*, Volume 5, numéro 2, 2014

- Douglas, M. (1996). *Thought Styles: Critical Essays on Good Taste*. New York: Sage Publication.
- Downe-Wamboldt, B. (1992). Content analysis: Method, applications, and issues. *Health Care for Women International*, 13, 313-321.
- Eating China. Retrived from http://www.eatingchina.com/recipes/three-cup-chicken.htm
- Elo, S., & Kyngäs, H. (2008). The qualitative content analysis process. *Journal of Advanced Nursing*, 62, 107-115.
- Embassy of France in Dublin. Retrived from http://www.ambafrance-ie.org/Exhibition-1689-2013-The-Irish
- Endo, T. (2013). Special Report: Serving Japanese Food to the World. Japan: JETRO.
- Fantini, A.E, (1997). Language: Its Cultural and Intercultural Dimensions." In New Ways in Teaching Culture. The social construction of nature: a sociology of ecological enlightenment. Sage: London.
- Ferguson, P. (2005). Eating Orders Markets, Menus, And Meals. *The Journal of Modern History*, 679-700.
- Fieldhouse, P. (1986). *Food and Nutrition: Customs and Culture*. Nelson Thornes: Cheltenham.
- Frazer, J. G. (1980). *The New Golden Bough: A study in Magic and Religion*. New York: Macmillan.
- Gee, J. P. (1990). Social Linguistics and Literacies: Ideology in Discourses. Bristo: The Falmer Press.
- Gibson, J. J. (1966). *The Senses Considered as Perceptual Systems*. Boston: Houghton Mifflin.
- Gifford, K. D., & Sinnott, S. B. (2007). *The Oldways Table: Essays & Recipes from the Culinary Think Tank*. Berkeley: Ten Speed Press.
- Goody, J. (1982). Cooking, Cuisine and Class: A Study in Comparative Sociology. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Gorter, D., & Cenoz, J. (2008). Knowledge about Language and Linguistic Landscape. In J. Cenoz, & N. H. Hornberger (Eds.), *Encyclopedia of Language and Education* (2nd edition) (pp. 343-355). New York: Springer.

- Gorter, D. (2006a). Further Possibilities for Linguistic Landscape Research. In D. Gorter (Ed.), *Linguistic Landscape: A New Approach to Multilingualism* (pp. 81-89). Clevedon: Multilingual Matters Ltd.
- Gorter, D. (Ed.) (2006b). *Linguistic Landscape: A New Approach to Multilingualism*. Clevedon: Multilingual Matters Ltd.
- Griffin, J. L. (2004). The Presence of Written English on the Streets of Rome. *English Today*, 3-8.
- Grimes, W. (2009). *Appetite City: A Culinary History of New York*. New York: North Point Press.
- Grimes, W. (1998). *Menus: Challenging the Old Order*. Retrieved from The New York Times.
- Haller, H. W. (1993). *Una Lingua Perduta E Ritrovata. L'italiano Degli Iitalo- Americani.* Firenze: La Nuova Italia.
- Halliday, M. A. K. (1994). *An Introduction to Functional Grammar (2nd Edition)*. London: Edward Arnold.
- Halliday, M. A. K. (1978). Language as Social Semiotic: The Social Interpretation of Language and Meaning. London: Edward Arnold.
- Halliday, M. A. K., & Hasan, R. (1976). Cohesion in English. London: Longman.
- Halligan, M. (1990). Eat My Words. North Ryde: Angus & Roberston.
- Halligan, M. (1988). *The Living Hothouse*. St. Lucia: University of Queensland Press.
- Harris, Z. S. (1952). Discourse Analysis. Language, 1-30.
- Hawkes, C. (2009). Sales Promotions and Food Consumption. *Nutrition Reviews*, 333-342.
- Heinzelmann, U. (2008). Food Culture in Germany. *Food culture around the world*. Westport: Greenwood Press.
- Highfield, J. (2006). Refusing to be Fat Llamas: Resisting Violence through Food in Sozaboy and Purple Hibiscus. *Kunapipi*, 43-53.
- Hornsby, M. (2008). The Incongruence of the Breton Linguistic Landscape for young Speakers of Breton. *Journal of Multilingual & Multicultural Development*, 127-138.
- Holsti, O.R. (1968). Content Analysis. In G.Lindzey & E.Aronson (Eds.), *The Handbook of Social Psychology (2nd ed.)* (Pp.596-692), Vol.II, New Delhi: Amerind Publishing Co.

- Hsieh, H-F, & Shannon, S. E. (2005). Three approaches to qualitative content analysis. *Qualitative Health Research*, 15(9), 1277-1288
- Huebner, T. (2006). Bangkok's Linguistic Landscapes: Environmental Print, Code-Mixing and Language Change. In D. Gorter, *Linguistic Landscape: A New Approach to Multilingualism* (pp. 31-51). Clevedon: Multilingual Matters Ltd.
- Hult, F.M. (2009). Language ecology and linguistic landscape analysis, in Shohamy, E. & Gorter, D. (eds) *Linguistic Landcape*. 88-104.
- Hussei, B, A-S (2012). The Sapir-Whorf Hypothesis Today. *Theory and Practice in Language Studies*, Vol. 2, No. 3, 642-646
- Inglehart, R., & Baker, W. E. (2002). Modernization's Challenge to Traditional Values: Who's Afraid of Ronald McDonald? *The Futurist*, 16-28.
- Ishtla, S. (2000). Language, Thought and Representation. In T. Linda, & W. Shân, Language, Society and Power: An Introduction (pp. 21-24). New York: Routledge.
- JAKIM (2009), "Takrifan Halal". Retrived from www.halal.gov.my/
- Johns, N., & Pine, R. (2002). Consumer Behaviour in the Food Service Industry: A Review. *International Journal of Hospitality Management*, 119-134.
- Kelly, B., Bochynska, K., Kornman, K., & Chapman, K. (2008). Internet Food Marketing on Popular Children's Websites and Food Product Websites in Australia. *Public Health Nutrition*, 1180-1187.
- Kondracki, N. L., & Wellman, N. S. (2002). Content analysis: Review of methods and their applications in nutrition education. *Journal of Nutrition Education and Behavior*, 34, 224-230
- Korthals, M. J. J. A.A. (2008). Food as a Source and Target of Metaphors: Inclusion and Exclusion of Foodstuffs and Persons through Metaphors. *Configuration*, 77-92.
- Kotschevar, L. H., & Withrow, D. (2008). *Management by Menu (Fourth Edition)*. New Jersey: Wiley.
- KraftHeinz. Write Menus that Entice and Invite. Retrived from http://www.kraftheinzfoodservice.com/en/businesssolutions/kitchenmenusolutions/writemenusthate nticeandinvite
- Kress, G., & van Leeuwen, T. (1996). Reading images. *The grammar of visual design*. London: Routledge.

- Labensky, S., Ingram, G. G., & Labensky, S. R. (2001). Webster's New World Dictionary of Culinary Arts (Second Edition). New Jersey: Prentice-Hall.
- Lada, S., Tanakinjal, H.G. and Amin, H., (2009). Predicting intention to choose halal products using theory of reasoned action. *International Journal of Islamic and Middle Eastern Finance and Management*. vol. 2(1).
- Lakoff, R. T. (2006). Identity a la Carte; or, You Are What You Eat. In A. D. Fina, D. Schiffrin, & M. Bamberg (Eds.), *In Discourse and Identity* (pp. 147-165). Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Landry, R., & Bourhis, R. Y. (1977). Linguistic landscape and Ethnolinguistic Vitality: An Empirical Study. *Journal of Language and Social Psychology*, 23-49.
- Lareau A, Weininger E.B. (2003) Cultural Capital in Educational Research: A Critical Assessment. *Theory and Society*, 32: 567–606.
- Leeman, J., & Modan, G. (2009). Commodified Language in Chinatown: A Contextualized Approach to Linguistic Landscape. *Journal of Sociolinguistics*, 332-362.
- Lévi-Strauss, C. (1964). The Principle of Reciprocity. In L. Coser, A. Lewis, & B. Rosenberg, *Sociological Theory: A Book of Readings* (pp. 74-84). New York: The Macmillan Company.
- Lévi-Strauss, C. (1970). The Raw and the Cooked. London: Jonathan Cape.
- Long, L. (1998). Culinary Tourism: A Folkloristic Perspective on Eating and Otherness. *Southern Folklore*, 181-205
- López, A (2017). The Twisted History of Pasta.Retrived from http://www.nationalgeographic.com/archaeology-and-history/magazine/daily-life-pasta-italy-neapolitan-diet/
- Manchester L. M. (1985). The Philosophical Foundations of Humboldt's Linguistic Doctrines, Amsterdam. Philadelphia: John Benjamins.
- Marling, S., & Kittel, G. (1993). *American Affair: The Americanization of Britain*. London: Bath Press.
- McArthur, T. (2000). Interanto: The Global Language of Signs. *English Today*, 33-43.
- McCawley, J. D. (1984). *The Eater's Guide to Chinese Characters*. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.

- Mehta, B. (2005). Culinary Diasporas: Identity and the language of Food in Gisèle Pineau's Un papillon dans la cité and L'Exil selon Julia. *International Journal of Francophone Studies*, 23-51.
- Mennel, S., Murcott, A., & Van Otterloo, A. (1992). *The Sociology of Food Eating, Diet, and Culture.* London: Sage.
- Mohd Hairi Jalis, Mohd Salehuddin Mohd Zahari, Muhamad Izzat Zulkifly and Zulhan Othman (2007). Western Tourist Perception of Malaysian Gastronomic Products. *Asian Social Journal*, Vol 5(1), 25 36.
- National Restaurant Association . (2000). Retrieved from National Restaurant Association: http://www.restaurant.org, 'fac.cfm
- New World Encyclopedia . Retrived from http://www.newworldencyclopedia.org/entry/Mexico
- Ninbanharn, A., & Jimarkon, P. (2014). Linguistic Landscape of Two Language Schools in Bangkok. *International Conference on Language and Communication 2014 Proceedings* (pp. 20-45). Bangkok: National Institute of Development Administration (NIDA).
- Noor, M., Mustafa R. Muhabat, F, & Kazemian, B. (2015). The Language of TV Commercial's Slogan: A Semantic Analysis. Science Publishing Group, 1(1), 7-12
- Norman, K. L., & Chin, J. P. (1989). The Menu Metaphor: Food for Thought. *Behaviour and Information Technology*, 125-134.
- Omar, S.R., Ab Karim, M.S., and Omar, S.N. (2014). Exploring international Tourists' attitudes and perceptions: In characterizing Malaysian Heritage Food (MHF) as a tourism attraction in Malaysia. *International Journal of Social Science and Humanity*. vol. 5.
- Paltridge, B. R. (2001). *Genre and the Language Learning Classroom*. Ann Arbor: University of Michigan Press.
- Pennycook, A. (2009). Linguistic Landscapes and the Transgressive Semiotics of Graffiti. In E. G. Shohamy, & D. Gorter (Eds.), *Linguistic Landscape Expanding the Scenery* (pp. 302-312). New York: Routledge.
- Reid, T. (2002). *Essays on the Intellectual Powers of Man A Critical Edition*. (R. B. Derek, Ed.) Edinburgh: Edinburgh University Press. (Original work published in 1785.).
- Ritzer, G. (1993). The McDonaldization of Society. California: Pine Forge Press.
- Ritzer, G. (2000). The McDonaldization of Society. New York: Sage.

- Ritzer, G. (2002). McDonaldization: The Reader (Third Edition). New York: Sage.
- Rønning, A. H. (2011). Halligan's Love Affair with Food. Coolabah, 130-138.
- Rosenbaum, Y., Nadel, E., Cooper, R. L., & Fishman, J. A. (1977). English on Keren Kayement Street. In R. L. Cooper, A. W. Conrad, & J. A. Fishman (Eds.), *The Spread of English* (pp. 178-196). Rowley, MA: Newbury House.
- Rozin, P. (1996). The socio cultural context of eating and food choice in Meiselman, H. and MacFie, H.J.H. (Eds), *Food Choice*, *Acceptance and Consumption*, *Blackie*, London, pp. 83 104
- Santich, B. (2003). The study of gastronomy and its relevance to hospitality, education and training. International journal of hospitality and management, 1 (23), 15-24.
- Shaikh Mohd, S.M.S. (2006). Aspects of food safety from the islamic perspective. In Shaikh Mohd, S.M.S & Azrina, S. (Ed.). *Food and Technological Progress an Islamic Perspective*. Kuala Lumpur: MPH.
- Schlick, M. (2002). The English of Shop Signs in Europe. English Today, 3-7.
- Shepherd, G. M. (2012). *Neurogastronomy: How the Brain Creates Flavor and Why It Matters*. New York: Columbia University Press.
- Shiohata, M. (2012). Language Use Along the Urban Street in Senegal:Perspectives from Proprietors of Commercial Signs. *Journal of Multilingual and Multicultural Development*, 269-285.
- Shohamy, E., Ben-Rafael, E., Amara, M. H., & Trumper-Hecht, N. (2006). Linguistic Landscape as Symbolic Construction of the Public Space: The Case of Israel. *International Journal of Multilingualism*, 7-30.
- Spolsky, B., & Cooper, R. L. (1991). *The Languages of Jerusalem*. Oxford: Clarendon Press.
- Stajcic, N. (2013), Understanding Culture: Food as a Means of Communication. Hemispheres Studies on Cultures and Societies, 77-87
- Stankevich, D. G. (1997) 'Branding the Burger', Discount Merchandiser 37(9).
- Suhor, C. (2003). Semiotics and the English Language Arts. ERIC Digest. Retrived from https://www.ericdigests.org/pre-9219/english.htm
- Tamang, J. P. (2010). Himalayan Fermented Foods: Microbiology, Nutrition and Ethnic Values. New York: Taylor and Francis.

- Taylor-Leech, K. (2011). Language choice as an index of identity: Linguistic landscape in Dili, Timor-Leste. *International Journal of Multilingualism*, 15-34.
- Thomas, J. (1995). *Meaning in Interaction: An Introduction to Pragmatics*. Harlow: Longman.
- Thomas, L. & Wareing S. (1999). *Language, Society and Power: An Introduction*. Routledge: New York
- Tomita, A. & Secter, M. (2002). Passionate Zen Cooking: The Art of Japanese Fusion Cuisine. USA: North Atlantic Books.
- Tresidder, R. (2010). Reading Food Marketing: The Semiotics of Marks & Spencer!? *International Journal of Sociology and Social Policy*, 472-485.
- Tulp, S. M. (1978). Reklame en tweetaligheid: Een onderzoek naar de geografische. *Taal en Sociale Integratie*, 261-288.
- Urry, J. (2002). The tourist gaze: Leisure and travel in contemporary societies (2nd ed.). London: Sage.
- Verschueren, J. (1999). *Understanding Pragmatics*. New York: Oxford University Press..
- Wright, L. T., Nancarrow, C., & Kwok, P. M. (2001). Food Taste Preferences and Cultural Influences on Consumption. *British Food Journal*, 348-57.
- Wright, W., & Ransom, E. (2005). Stratification on the Menu: Using Restaurant Menus to Examine Social Class. *Teaching Sociology*, 310-316.
- Yolk, O. (2009, Jun 25). What Would A Politicised Eat European Menu Look Like? Retrieved from The Economist: http://www.economist.com/node/13899366
- Zairi, Z. (2001). Fusion Cuisine: Conquering the New World. England: Emerald Book
- Zeldin, T. (1998). An Intimate History Of Humanity. London: Vintage.
- Zwicky, A., & Zwicky, A. (1980). America's National Dish: The Style of Restaurant Menus. *American Speech*, 83-92.

BIODATA OF STUDENT

Coming from a linguistics background, Chia Wei has strong interest in language, culture, people and social cause. Her involvement in the Deaf community when learning Malaysian Sign Language has motivated her to build inclusive community among the Deaf and hearing individuals through story telling activities such as short film and performance. She is currently a lecturer teaching soft skills such as thinking skills and project management at a private university.





UNIVERSITI PUTRA MALAYSIA

STATUS CONFIRMATION FOR THESIS / PROJECT REPORT AND COPYRIGHT

OTATOO CON INMATION TON	THE SIG THE SECTION AND SOLITION
ACADEMI	C SESSION :
TITLE OF THESIS / PROJECT REP	ORT:
LINGUISTIC FOODSCAPE AS CON	VEYED THROUGH ONLINE FOOD MENUS
NAME OF STUDENT: LIM CHIA WE	
	d other intellectual property in the thesis/project reporting and I agree to allow this thesis/project report to being terms:
1. This thesis/project report is the pro	pperty of <mark>Un</mark> iversiti Putra Malay <mark>s</mark> ia.
The library of Universiti Putra M purposes only.	lalaysia has the right to make copies for educationa
3. The library of Universiti Putra Macademic exchange.	falaysia is allowed to make copies of this thesis for
I declare that this thesis is classified	as:
*Please tick (v)	
CONFIDENTIAL	(Contain confidential information under Official Secret Act 1972).
RESTRICTED	(Contains restricted information as specified by the organization/institution where research was done).
OPEN ACCESS	I agree that my thesis/project report to be published as hard copy or online open access.
This thesis is submitted for :	
PATENT	Embargo from until (date)
•	Approved by:
(Signature of Student) New IC No/ Passport No.:	(Signature of Chairman of Supervisory Committee) Name:

[Note : If the thesis is CONFIDENTIAL or RESTRICTED, please attach with the letter from the organization/institution with period and reasons for confidentially or restricted.]

Date:

Date: